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Paper Mill of GLESSNER & GILBERT, Zanesville, Ohio.

In 1828, Ezekiel T. Cox and Simeon Wright,

who were at that period operating a saw mill at

the north end of Seventh street, in Zanesville,

conceived the idea of establishing a paper mill in

connection with their lumber mill, and proceeded

at once to put their plans into execution by the

erection of a wooden structure for this purpose,

which was operated by the same power that pro-

pelled their saw mill. This was the initial or

pioneer manufacturing industry of any note in

the town of Zanesville, and was the second paper

mill established in Ohio. Its machinery was sim-

ple, and the process crude, of converting rags into

printing and writing papers, the sheets being

formed by hand in a slow and tedious manner, in

accordance with the primitive processes in use in

those early times. This rude paper mill became a

power in this Western country, its product finding

a ready market throughout Central Ohio and in

the Northwest, and in the Western Territories,

until these had outgrown its power to supply the

demand for paper, and for years, even to dates run-

ning not very far back into the past, this paper

mill was identified with Zanesville as its leading

landmark, in the minds of Western people scat-

tered over a vast extent of territory.

The changes that this mill has since undergone

in proprietorship are accurately noted on pages 88

and 89, to which the reader is referred.

In the early period of telegraphy the process of

taking off messages was by passing narrow strips

of soft white paper through an instrument that

registered the words communicated by perforations

on this paper. It was evident that the consump-
tion of this paper must be large, but the process

of supplying it was a slow, simple and tedious

operation, performed by hand. A mechanic, who
commenced employment in the Zanesville Paper

Mill in 1838, and is still with it as its Superin-

tendent, conceived the idea that this telegraph

paper could be made and cut by machinery, and

he soon successfully worked out a method of accom-

plishing this with perfect accuracy, and rapidly

enough to supply the entire demand. His inven-

tion immediately met a great want in telegraphy,

and there soon grew up a large demand, not only

in this country but in Europe, and wherever the

teregraph had strung its wires. It was made in

rolls of six to seven inches diameter, and cut in

strips of one inch in width, and formed a large, im-

portant and profitable element in the business

of this mill for many years, as it was the only

place where it was manufactured. The inventor,

C. R. Hubbell, never patented his process, and

numberless mills in the country experimented to

copy or improve his method, but never succeeded.

It has had its day, however, and has gradually

gone into disuse.

For more than half a century the busy wheels

of this paper mill have responded day and night

continuously to the demands upon it. It fur-

nishes employment, directly and indirectly, to

many persons and families, and its work seems to

be but fairly begun. It was identified with the

first dawn of the prosperity of Zanesville, and its

usefulness and prosperity will continue to be iden-

tical with the solid growth of its favored locality,

and years will yet pass before its mission is

fulfilled.
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Hubbell, Thomas Hubbell and William Nutt,
This firm conducted the business about one year,

when Thomas Hubbell and William Nutt with-
drew, and the business was continued by the re-

maining partners until April i, 1859, when C. ^*
Hubbell sold his interest to James M. Leonard,
and soon after this property was conveyed to

Mrs. E. M. Gox, and the firm name became
Elizabeth M. Cox & Co., and was managed by
James L. Cox, her husband.

In 1869, Mrs. Cox sold a half interest to John
Gilbert, and the firm name became Cox & Gil-

bert, and so continued until November i, 1868,

'when Jacob Glessner, John Gilbert and Terry
became the owners of the mill, and shortly

alter this Glessner & Gilbert purchased the. in-

terest of Mr. Terry, and made valuable improve-
ments. They continue to own and manage the

establishment, and have won an enviable reputa-

tion for their products, far and near.

Mathews' Paper Mill.—The original pur-

pose of the present building was a cotton fac-

tory ; it did not succeed, and after standing idle

for a number of years was sold by the_^ Sheriff",

about 1865, to Edward Mathews, who associated

with him George Rishtine, for the purpose of

paper making. Mathews & Co. removed the

old machinery and placed apparatus and mach-
inery for the manufacture of paper, and made
sundry improvements and additions to the prem-
ises, at a cost of about twenty-five thousand dol-

lars. Other additions, amounting to about fif-

teen thousand dollars, have been made since that

time.

The firm of Mathews & Co. dissolved in 1876,

since which time the business has been con-

dvicted by E. Mathews, proprietor, Mr. George
Rishtine, who has managed the business from

the beginning, being retained in that capacity.

The mill began by making coarse wrapping
paper and tea paper. Printing paper ahd man-
ilia paper are the kinds now made, amounting
in all to four thousand pounds daily. The
amount of business done annually is about sixty

thousand dollars. The monthly pay-roll is about

one thousand dollars.

The mill is on the southwest corner of Zane
and Underwood streets.

Early Painters.—E. H. Church was of the

opinion that Wesley Alwine, who came in 1828,

was the first to engage in painting for a busi-

ness. He was " a genius in his way," and con-

sidered a fine workman. Merrick Barr came
soon after and opened his shop in Putnam. Dan-
iel McCarty (who prided himself in being one of

the F. F. Vs., in spite of his name), worked for

Barr, and they were fond of saying that their

customers were "the old Yankees," meaning
the Buckinghams, Sturges, Whipple, Putnam,
Dr. Robert Saffbrd and Major Horace Nye.
McCarty opened a shop in Zanesville proper

in 1853, and subsequently engaged in merchan-

dising.

PoTTBHYr—-Samuel Sullivan, of Philadelphia,

Pa., came to Zanestown in the spring of 1808,
and lived in a cabin adjoining Gen. Van Home's
farm house, on the northeast corner of Main and
Third streets, and began the manufacture of red-
ware ; he built a moderate sized kiln and made
plates, cups and saucers, besides other house-
hold articles. He was a sober, industi-ious man,
born in the State of Delaware, April 10, 1772;
he died on his farm in Falls township, October
^5) 1853. In 1840, Bernard Howson, John Hal-
lam, George Wheaton and two other experienced
pottei-s, originally from Staffordshire, England,
came to Zanesville and engaged in the manu-
facture of potter's wares. In the spring of 1846,
John Howson (brother of Beimard) joined the
company, and this firm continued until 1852,
when John Howson and his son Bernard became -

sole owners. This pottery, from the last date up
to 1863, did an annual business of $8,000. In

1863, John Howson died, and the business was
continued by his son Bernard. About this time,

the general business was making ink bottles. In

1874 the establishment was leased by Fisher and
Lansing, of New York City, for the maufacture
of fioor tiling.

In 1849, George Pyatt, from Staffordshire,

England, came to Zanesville and began the
maniifacture of Rockingham and yellow stone-

ware. In 185 1 , Mr. Pyatt and Christopher Goetz
formed a partnership, which continued two years,
when Pyatt removed to Cincinnati, where he
started, one after another, about all of the early
potteries of that city. In 1859, ^^'^ Pyatt and
three other Englishmen removed to Kaolin, Mo.,
and there operated in the manufacture of white
ware until the breaking out of the war, when
Pyatt returned to Cincinnati, and in 1863 he re-

turned to Zanesville and engaged with Mr. How-
son until 1866, when he began business for him-
self. In 1878, he had enlarged his capacities for

business by a ten horse power engine, boiler and
suitable machinery, but died March 15, 1879.
The business has been conducted by his son, J.
G. Pyatt, since that time. They are known as

the Tremont Pottery, and turn out about $2,000
worth of pottery annually.

In 1868, N. K. Smith began the manufacture
of pottery, and, with the aid of seven men, turns

out about seventy-five gallons of ware.
In 1874, Duncan Hamelback built a pottery in

the Ninth Ward ; his establishment riianufactures

jugs, jars, churns, etc.

In 1878, Calvin Bumbaugh bought a pottery in

the Ninth Ward, known as the " Star Pottery,"
built in 1873 by Alfred Wilber ; seven men are

employed there, and they turn out about eighty-

five thousand gallons of ware annually.

Revenue, Internal.—Mr. John Reynolds,
principal Assessor for the Fifth District of Ohio,
appointed his Deputies May 2d, 1815, for that

year. For Washington county, Colern C. Bar-
ton ; Muskingum county, James Victors, then
living in West Zanesville ; Guernsey county. Dr.
E. Lee ; Coshocton county, Lewis Vail ; Tusca-
rawas county, Robert F. Capis. This Internal

1^
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gular piece west of Fourth street. The land ly-
ing on the river bank north of Water street he
divided into five lots, calling them "River Bank
lots."

Hall's second addition was made by John
Hall, June 15, 1838, being part of river bottom
lot No. 3, and consists of four fractional lots ly-
ing between Howard's sub-division and Fifth
street, and four lots fronting the east side of
Fifth street.

John Hall's third addition, also part of out-lot

three, is a lot thirty-seven feet square, on the west
side of Fifth street, and one lot 37x132 feet

fronting the east side of Fifth street. It was
made June 2, 1842.

John Hall's fourth addition, made July 31,
1848, is another part of outlot three, and consists

of six lots fronting* Seventh street on the west
side and running back to Sewer alley.

Robert Mitchell's addition is a sub-division of
part of outlot four, made May 24, 1839, ^^^
consists of three ' fractional lots fronting the west
side of Fifth street, six lots fronting the east side

of Sixth street and one lot fronting the west side

of Seventh street.

G. A. Jones' addition is also a part of outlot

four, consisting of six lots fronting the west side

of Sixth street, south of what is known as the

"old Rope Walk lot." The plat is dated Febru-
ary, 18, 1850.

•

John R. Howard, January 8, 1836, sub-divided
a part of outlot five,which sub-division was called

by the name of "Howard street lots." Two lots

front Fifth street, north of Howard ; thirteen lots

front the north side of Howard street ; three lots

front Seventh street ; a large lot,, running from
Fifth street nearly to Seventh street on the south

of Howard street, is called the rope walk lot. It

has since been cut up, by reason of Sixth street

and the alleys being extended north to Howard
street ; the east end of Howard street is the shape
of an arc of a circle, the center point of which, in

the original plat, was north of the street, but the

Common Pleas Court at the April term, 1837,
upon petition ofJohn R. Howard, changed it so

the center of the circle would fall south of the

street.

Pafer MillAddition.—This addition was made
April I, 1861, and was formed hj a sub-division

of Marple's outlofs six and seven, made by
James L. Cox, George Rishtine, C. R. Hubbell
and Elizabeth M. Cox: Two large lots (Nos.

one and two) and three small lots, front the west
side of Seventh street ; twelve lots front the

south side and five lots front the north side of

Zane street.

Cox's sub-division of lots nineteen, twenty,

twenty-one and twenty-two in the paper mill ad-

dition by J. L. Cox, April I, 1816. Five lots

fronting north side of Zane street and one lot

fronting the railroad.

The Zanesville Canal and Manufacturing
Company, November 15, 1836, laid out the land

lying between Second street and the river, and
north of Market, into eleven lots, three of which
were not numbered.

WEST ZANESVILLE.

In the partition of their property, between
Mclntire and Zane, all that part of West Zanes-
ville lying east of Blue avenue was deeded to

Mclntire and that west to Zane.
John Mclntire, March 23, 1809, laid out a tier

of lots fronting the west side of River street,

which were numbered on the recorded plat from
one to twenty inclusive. Several years after-

wards it was discovered that the lots had been
deeded as if in squares of eight lots to the square,

while there were no squares designated on the

recorded plat. This led to a great confusion in

the conveyances, which was remedied by a

special act of the Legislature passed March 2,

1838 (Local Laws 1838, p. 156), which declared
that the recorded plat should govern.
The administrators of John Mclntire, March

12, 1861, laid out tVvelve lots north of lot twenty,
fronting the west side of River street,which were
numbered from twenty-one to thirty-two, both
inclusive. Mclntire's administrators, June 17,

1865, laid out "River addition to West Zanes-
ville," consisting of eight lots between River
street and the river, running southerly from
Mclntire avenue.

Mclntire's administrators, July 19, 1863, made
another addition to West Zanesville, consisting

of eighty-one lots, numbered from thirty-three to

one hundred and thirteen, both inclusive. This
addition is bounded north by Mclntire avenue,
east by Peters' alley, south by Lee street, west
by Blue avenue, and includes "Mclntire Park,"
containing twelve and fifty-two one-hundredths
acres.

Philip Sunkel, February 4, 1870, sub-divided

lot ninety-nine, making eight lots fronting north

side of Keen street, with an alley sixteen and
one-half feet wide north, and leaving a strip three

and one-half feet wide extending along the en-

tire length of the lot.

Jacob Gunther, September 6, 1875, sub-di-

vided lots ninety-five and ninety-six,making three

lots running from Keen street to Jackson street.

Peter Schreck and Gottlieb Schoeller, January
I, 1869, sub-divided lot 102, making six lots

fronting Park street, six lots north and six lots

south of Grant street and six lots fronting Keen
street.

James Tui-ner, September 30, 1869, sub-

divided lot 103, making five lots fronting north-

east side of Keen street, five lots fronting south

side of a thirty-six foot street, and a large lot,

number eleven, fronting Park street. March i,

1875, he sub-divided the lot number eleven,

making six lots fronting the narrow cross street,

numbered from eleven to sixteen, and a large

lot, number seventeen, fronting Park street.

March 14, 1876, he sub-divided the lot number
seventeen, making five lots, numbered from sev-

enteen to twenty-one, all fronting the south side

of Park street.

Abraham Laird, August 11, 1869, subdivided

lot 108, making six lots on the east side of Ful-

ton street.
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life, as for example President James A. Garfield,

who once served on the tow-path !

BOATS THAT HAVE TRAVERSED THE MUSKINGUM
SINCE THE ADVENT OF THE WHITE MAN.

About 1822, Richard Reeves built a small

boat, which was known as "Dicky Reeves' first

steam boat ;" it, however, was propelled by horse

power. Mr. Reeves subsequently built the boats

that were called "Faith," and "Charity."
In 1829, Captain Wm. Scales built a keel

boat which he named "The Rifleman of Zanes-
ville ;" these boats ran between Zanesville and
Pittsburgh, making the trip each way in from
four to six weeks."
The "Hope," a flat bottomed boat, with a

wheel at the stern, was the first boat on the Mus-
kingum river that was propelled by steam ; it

was built by Richard Reeves in 1827-8. The
engine was made at the Richmond and Bost-

wick foundry, by Mr. Nicholson, a machinist
from Pittsburgh. Mr. Reeves also built the

"Walhonding," a twenty ton boat intended for

low water on the Ohio ; and in 1828 he launched
the "Mary Ann," a fifty ton boat, commanded
by Captain Nicholson. She made her trial trip

to Coshocton, was successfully floated over the

dam, and, on that account, was called "Sam
Patch." James Sprague owned this boat.

The "Zanesville," was built in 1833, by Cap-
tain Wm. Scales and John Alter, Jr.. Her
machinery was constructed and placed by
Messrs. Dare and Ebert. This was "a stern

wheeler. Wm. Scales, Captain.

The "Tuscarora," was built in 1835, by the

same parties.

The "Muskingum," Frank Cogswell Captain,
was built in Zanesville in 1845, by the Bishop
Brothers ; the machinery by Ebert and Whitaker.
The "Belle Zane" was built a short time pre-

vious, and intended for the trade between Zanes-
ville and New Orleans. During the night of

January 8th, 1845, twelve miles below the mouth
of White river, in the Mississippi, she struck a

snag and sunk. Out of ninety passengers, only
fifty escaped drowning, and a number of those

who reached the shore froze to death. Munroe
Ayers was Captain and David Hahn engineer of
the ill-fated boat—they survived.

The "Moxahala" was built during 1845 ; and
the "Putnam," about that time—the latter by
Blue and Robert Hazlett ("Black Bob"), at the

foot of Second street, just below the Second
street M. E. Church, and launched in the canal.

It was a hundred and fifty ton boat. The
machinery was made by Ebert and Loudan.
The "Zanesville," (the second by this name)

was built in 1846, by Perry Smith.
The "Jenny Lind" was built at McBride's

ship yard, (located where the new power house
of the city water works now stands), for M. W.
Graham & Co. Ebert and Loudan made the
machinery. Chas Gallagher was Captain.
The "Phil Dodridge" was built by Bishop &

Co., in 1848-9. The machinery by Ebert and
Loudan.

The "Independence," the largest and most

powerful side wheel steamer of that date—1850

—was constructed for Beaumont and Hollings-

worth. Geo. W. Graham was Captain.

The "Buckeye Belle" was built in 1850, and
blown up at Beverly Locks in 1852, when thirty-

two persons perished.

The "Ohio" was built in 1853, for the trade

between Zanesville and Dresden.
The "Julia Dean" was built at Marietta, about

the same time, and brought to Zanesville for her

machinery, which was furnished by Ebert &
Loudan.
The "Del Norte," a stern wheeler, was built

at Zanesville, and made her first trip in 1852

or '53.

The "Daniel Convers" was launched in 1853,

and "Emma Graham" in 1855.

The Geo. B. Reeves, White Cloud, Rainbow
and Live Oak were also in the trade, according

to Mr. EHas Ebert, to whom we are indebted for

the foregoing data ; and from a journal kept by
Mr. "Milt" C. McLaughHn the 'following addi-

tional names have been obtained, omitting such

as were named by Mr. Ebert

:

The Arroline, AHce, Arrow, U. S. Aid, Aus-
tin, Monongahala Bell, Bell, Buck, Ben Bolt,

Best, Bowen, Brooks, Barnard, Kate Cassel, Car-
oline, Comet, Clarion, Mingo Chief, Hail Colum-
bia, Cheviot, St. Cloud, Prairie City, J. M.
Camden, Combs, Lizzie Cassel, Dime, Brown
Dick, Dresden, Defiance, Mary D. Devol, En-
terprise, Empress, Elk, Falcon, Freighter, Free-
dom, Fox, Emma Graham No. 2, J. B. Gordon,
Loyal Hannah, Hope, Helen Marr, Silver

Heels, Tom Hackry, Hubble, Heatherington,
Itaka, Ida, Julia No. i and 2, Ludlow, Lowell,
R. H. Lindsey, Malta No. i and 2, Mclntire,
Martin, Mink No. i and 2, McCormick, Mc-
Connell, Newark, N3rmph, Octarara, Oella,

Ohioan, Obenchain Ohio No. 3, Pacific, Petona,
Patton, Potwin, Progi^ess, Powell, Rufus Put-
nam, Pilgrim, Pinta, Relief, Sechler, Swallow,
Swan, Speer, Thompson, Union, Mviskingum
Valley, Virogna, Jim Walt, Wild Wood and
Zanesville Packet.
Prominent steamboat men of the Muskingum

river; deceased

:

Captains—Wm. Scales, Absalom Boyd,Wni.
Boyd, Wm. Bowen, Frank Cogswell and
George W. Graham.

Retired Captains—Munroe Ayers, Joseph
McVey, David Pittman, David Brown and Ed-
ward Martin.

Engineers Deceased—Sylvester Ebert, D-
Hahn, G. Printz, D. Muncy, J. Sylvester and
George West.

Retired Engineers—J. C. Bevis, Joseph How-
land, Edward Nash, J. Brown, J. Hahn, T.
Sloan and John Munch.
The steamboats now in the Zanesville tirade are

as follows

:

"Gen. H. F. Devol," J. R. Martin, Captain;
Noah Kincaid and J. Van Law, Clerks.

"Lizzie Casse'J," Wm. Davis, Captain; L.
McGrew and Lewis Myrick, Clerks.
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1859-60.—Principal, Miss Mary A. Strong;
Assistants : Misses Clara E. Palmer, Helen No-
ble, Helen M. Richards, Maria Parsons, Caro-
line D. L. Kress, Lavinia B. Dibble.

1860-61.—Principal, Franklin Wood, A.M.;
Assistants: James C. Beekman, A.B., Misses
Hannah Noble, Maria A. Parsons, Sarah D.
McMillan, Cordelia J. Fletcher, Emily Larimore.

1861-65.—Principal, Mrs. E. A. Porter; As-
sistants : Misses Anna Mast, K. M. Richards,

S. Leonard, Harriet Sessions, Alma Leonard,
Mary B, Putnam ; Mr. John Metcalf, Librarian.

1865-66.—Miss Edith Mathews had a day
school in the Seminary.

1866-75.—Principal, Miss S. L. Chapman
;

Assistants: Misses F. Caldwell, M. R. Wil-
liams, J. A. Williams, Kate Derby, M'lfc Mar-
chaud. Misses L. M. Bigelow, F. S. Nye, J. M.
Gray, A. M. Stillwell, B..C..Graves, Julia Wyt-
tenbach, Mrs. Everett, Misses Caroline A. Far-
ley, J. A. Tenney, Anna Price, Julia M. Gray,
H. Thompson, J. A. Huntington, M'lle A. Ra-
gazzi, S. J. Turner, M. A. Pollock, M. D. East-

man, C. Townsend, M'lle M. Sixte, E. M. Berx-
ton, M. E. Brooks, M. E. Swazey, M'lle D. B.
eigne, E. V. Eastman, P. Burns.

1875-76.—Principal, Rev. Ebenezer Bucking-
ham, D.D. ; Assistants: Mrs. E. N. Bucking-
ham, Misses Laura Buckingham, Sarah M.
Barrows, Rev. W. P. Shrom, Misses Mary G.
Fulton, Caroline A. Farley, Marion M. Imrie,

•and Madam M. Maimon.
1876-80.—Principal, Mrs. J. Baldwin Ackley

;

Associate, Miss M. H. Baldwin ; Assistants

:

Prof. Charles H. Dixon, A.M., Misses Virginia

L. Stevens, Anna M. Sykes, Marion M.. Imrie,

Madam M. J. Mettke, Misses Edna Kinnear, L.

J. Vorhis, Mary S. Dunlap, Sarah Lewis, Sarah
E. Rollo, Mrs. Mary Cowles, Madam Bade
Garcia, Rev. A. R. Levy, Miss A. Thompson,
Mrs. C. D. Lyons, Mrs. L. G. Shrom, Prof. E.
De Beaumont.

1880.—Principal, D. Evans, A.M. ; Assistants :

B. C. Davis, Mrs. B. C. Davis, Misses M. M.
Fleming, Sarah E. Rollo, and Mary S. Dunlap

;

and, in 1881, Miss Rollo was succeeded by Miss
Emeretta Comstock.

GRADUATES.
The list up to 1844 is very imperfect, and it is

now impossible to arrange them in classes ; the

names obtained, known to have graduated prior

to that time, are as follows :

Catharine P. Buckingham, Martha H. Buck-
ingham, Mary Mathews, Frances Dana, Abigail
Browning, Sarah Van Beusen, Emily Mold,
Melissa Stone, Achsah Cherry, Caroline Elliot,

Hannah Justis, Charlotte B. Parker, Lucy M.
Whipple, Jane Becket, Lillie Gould.

Class of 1844.—Luanna Brush, Sarah C.
Fracker, Sarah M. Goddard, Caroline E. Hale,
Lucretia Mason, Harriet E. Jewett, Catharine T.
Miser, Martha A. Seymour, Sarah Sturgis,

(Potwin.)
Class of 1845.—Jane Gould, Sarah H. Hall,

Elizabeth N. Horr (Buckingham), Susan C.
Hoyt, Maria E. Miller.

Class of 1846.—Esther S. Guthrie (Silvey),

Maria Hopkins, Clara D. T^amb.
Class of 1847.—Alice S. Cone (Brush), Eliza-

beth G. Goddard, Isabella F. Howard.
Class of 1848.—Julia A. Buckingham (Cox),

Mary S. Guthrie (Fulton).

Class of 1849.—Alice C. Goddard, Sarah J.
Smith, Amanda B. Sturges (Bond).

Class of 1850.—Agnes W. Beecher (Allen),

Mary S. Gilbert (Van Home).
Class of 1 85 1.—Kate J. Gilbert.

Class of 1852.—Mary L. Bailey, Amelia
Guthrie (King), Lizzie A. King, Mary M. Ran-
kin.

Class of 1853.—Mercy Adams, Virginia E.
Copeland, Josephine E. Tishburn, Rose A.
Hahn, Lucretia V. Hosmer, Margaret Patton,

Martha Rankin, Betty A. SafFord, Romaine M.
Vinton.

Class of 1854.—Caroline M. Belknap, Lizzie

Hinkle, Sallie Peters, Eliza V. Safford.

Class of 1855.—Mary P. Barker, Amanda T.
Buckingham, Indiana S. Copeland, Mary E.
Haver (Kingsbur}'), Caroline Haver (Worthing-
ton), Edith D. Matthews (Canby), Lucy Munch,
Mary C. Nye.

Class of 1856.—Mary Allen, Anna Blandy,
Anna B. Cram, Esther E. Dulty, Frances L.
Sherwood, Amanda A. True.

Class of 1857.—Margaret D. Allen, Maria J.
Banks, Sarah F. Bowers, Ella F. Chapman,
Caroline DeWar, Harriet A. Dinsmore, Hannah
Galigher, Annie Haines, Maria Parsons, Julia

A. Peabody, Cornelia J. Robins.
Class of 1858.—Harriet A. Culbertson (Fill-

more), Ellen A. Duncan, Mary C. Duncan,
Mary E. Glessner, Caroline Jones (Wiles), Ju-
lietta R. Palmer, Kate Sturges, Louise A. Tur-
ner.

Class of 1859.—Virginia J. Ball, Lucy J. Ben-
nett, Fidelia A. Brainerd, Margaret J. Cassiday,
Anna Ellis, Lavinia C. Folger, Harriet B.
James, Anna P. Jennings, Elizabeth a Kear-
ney.

Class of i86o.—Elizabeth S. Fenstermaker,
Anna Leslie, Mary. A. Merrick, Sarah E. Ship-
man (Kingsbury), Mary C. Thompson.

Class of 1861.—Kate B. Convers, Cordelia J.
Fletcher, Sidney S. Matthiot, Jane E. Parsons,
Elmira Scott, Kate R. Thomas.

Class of 1862.—Ella A.Allen (Munson), An-
na S. Bradshaw, Anna M. Manly, Clara B.
Printz, Judith D. Peabody (Brush), Lizzie B.
Ross, Sue A. Stillwell.

Class of 1863.—Mary J. Brown, Julia A.
Clarke, Mary E. Chapman, Augusta Haver,
Hattie N. Lowe, Isadora Merrick, Fannie S.

Nye, Hannah A. Parsons, Ellen R. Peabody.
Class of 1864.—Alice Brown, Mary S. Dun-

lap, Marjr C. Guthrie, Anna L. Price, Susie
Thompson, Eliza VanHorne.

Class of 1865.—Sallie Gillis, Lizzie Gillespie,

Mary Springer, Jennie Ewarson, Rebecca
Campbell (Farquhar).

Class of 1866.—Josephine C. Stinger, Helen
M. Thompson.
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Class of 1868—Ella S. Brown, Laura Ful-

ton, Julia M. Gray, Clara D. Guthrie (Clark),

Rachel H. Huston, Lulu S. Potwin (Munson),
Rose B. Sterret, Julia E. Wiles.

Class of 1869.—-Mary D. Eastman, Minerva
T. Nye, Mary J. Roe."

Class ol 1870.—Kate M. Ashbaugh, Mattie

Taylor, Helen M. Twaddle. In Music, Vir-

ginia C. Darlington.

Class of 187 1.—Edith Eastman, Mary Gali-

gher, Edith S. Hahn, L. Eva Holt (Gilbert),

Mary M. Leggelt, Carrie E. Townsend (Lyon).
In Music, Carrie E. Townsend.

Class of 1872.—Lizzie S. Beaumont.
Class of 1873.—Lizzie M. Cox, Mary F.

Linn, Mary E. Munson, Cora Potwin (Ellis).

Class of 1874.—Carrie M. Beaumont, Con-
stance G. DuBois, Ella D. Sedgewick (Taylor).

Class of 1875.—Sophia Adams, MaryE. Rob-
ertson, Augusta Thompson", Clara S. Town-
send.

Class of 1876.—Elsie W. Buckingham, Cora
B. Black, Anna V. Culbertson, JessieA. Gless-

ner, Fannie L. Russell, Ida A. Townsend.
Class of 1877.—Mary H. Buckingham, Mary

E. Reese (Baker).
Class of 1878.—Anna M. Granger, Lucy R.

Hazlett, Ella Richards.

Class of 1879.—Anna G. Arthur, Amy S.

Blandy, Kate C. Galigher, Cora M. Hubbell,

Mary J. McBride, Etta W. Pillsbury.

Class of 1880.—Lizzie Ayers-, Dora Black,

Katie Little, Cora Manly, Jennie Richards, Hat-

tie Townsend.
Class of 1881.—Emma Blandy, Anna Brown,

Nellie Buckingham, LilHan Chappelear, Mame
Conrade, Ada Galligher, Allie S. Gillespie,

Belle Gi-anger, Bessie Hoge, Bessie Hutchinson,

Bertie Leutz, Linnie Mason, Lillie R. S afford.

The City Council ot Zanesville applied to the

County Commissioners for the privilege of an-

nexing certain territory to that city. February

28, 1870, an ordinance was passed by the City

Council of Zanesville, applying to the County

Commissioners for the annexation of certain con-

tiguous territory ; this ordinance described, by

metes and bounds, south Zanesville, with all- its

additions. The County Commissioners met

May 18, 1870, for the purpose of considering the

act of Council, and granted their request.

June I, 1870, a transcript of the proceedings of

said County Commissioners was filed with the

City Council, that being their next regular meet-

ing. August I, 1870, the City Council created

the Seventh Ward of the city of Zanesville out

of the territory above described.

Putnam Annexed to Zanesville.—At a

meeting of the City Council of Zanesville, Feb-

ruary 26, 1872, an ordinance was passed annex-

ing the town of Putnam to the city of Zanesville,

and said ordinance, being submitted to the peo-

ple on the first Monday of April, 1872, was ap-

proved by a majority of their votes being cast in

favor of it.

At a meeting of the City Council, held April 22,

1872, an ordinance was passed accepting the

town of Putnam as an addition to the city of

Zanesville ; and on the 6th of May, following,

an ordinance was passed, constituting the said'

annexed territory the Ninth Ward of the city

of Zanesville.

"Cliffwood," and that portion ofPutnam south

of it, was included in this annexation, as was also

that portion to the west line, and north of Mus--
kingum avenue, being the north line of said cor-

poration.

MERCHANTS, MECHANICS AND PROFESSIONAL MEN
OF SPRINGFIELD.

The following exhibit will be found more ex-

tensive in kind than Western villages can gener-

ally show, and eloquently sets forth the induce-

ments to settle in the community. The list be-

gins with the first merchant and first professional

man in Springfield. Some of these have succes-

sors at this day. The writer would willingly in-

dulge in reminiscenses concerning these, in or-

der to gratify a legitimate curiosity on the part

of the reader, and his own fondness for story-tell-

ing, and thus perpetuate their prominent traits of

character and influence in society, but feels con-

strained to do just as well as their posterity, who
have not been careful to preserve these, even in

a legendary form. So that it behooves the pres-

ent generation to take warning, that it may be
truly said—he lived.

No drop of that clear stream its way shall miss

To thy sire's heart, replenishing its source

With life, as the soul rejoins the universe.

Nor fail to fill the heart of the scion coming

With a loving«and ambitious longing,

A treasure ai the holiest memory

—

Though his head be ne'er so hoary.

The list is given in the order in which the rep-

resentatives are believed to have appeared, only

following in the various classes :

Dr. Increase Matthews, merchant and phy-

sician.

General Merchants—Buckingham & Sturges,

Burlingame & Silvey, Philip Munch, M. B. Cush-

ing. Wills & Thomas, Spear & Helmick, J. R.
Thomas & Co., J. C. Guthrie, Smith & Shon-
man, A. A. Guthrie, WilHam Large, Elder &
McCoy, McCoy & Lodge, Seaman, Hiner &
McKnight, Samuel Atkinson, McCoy Brothers,

L. & P. Wiles, W. F. McCoy, J. R. Thomas,
William Munch and J. C. Gillespie.

Hardware—S. C. Hoover, Thomas Berkshire.

Jeweler—Henry Safford.

Tailors—^John LaFerry, Samuel Ashmore,
William Berkshire , Rogers

.

Saddle and Harness Makers—Manning Put-

nam, Adolphus Chandler, S. C. Haver, Z. M.
Chandler, John Frederickson.

Druggists —V>x . Mathews, E. Dillon, Joseph

Shaw.
Cabinet Makers—]a.mes Sloan, Harry Gray,

Jesse Smith, Jr., Gray & Large, Eli Nesbaum,

John Drake.

»^

Rick
Highlight



192 HISTORY OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO.

L. H. Bigelow, Silvers Porter, William Leckey,
Thomas Durban and C. T. Fracker.
This was the second Lodge in Zanesville, and

started off under very flattering circumstances.
The founders were fired with zeal to carry out

the great principles of the order, and to teach
within its walls the principles of fraternal love,

and to build up Odd Fellows.
Of the names so memorable thirty years ago,

four have passed to the other shore,and entered the

Celestial Lodge above. We cherish fondly the

names of Durban, Porter, Fracker and Leckey
;

they were worthy brothers. Post Grand Thomas
Durban was one of Zanesville's brightest and
most influential Odd Fellows ; cordial and warm
hearted, his hand was ever open to a brother in

need. And, though mild and generous, he would
contend vigorously in debate to the last extremity.

He died June 2d, 1876. Silvers Porter, is a

name that awakens many warm memories. He
ever maintained the spirit of fidelity which char-
terizes the true Odd Fellow. Brothers Leckey
and Fracker were active and worthy members

;

their devotion to the principles of Odd Fellow-
ship was worthy of emulation.
The first officers of Moxahala Lodge were

:

A. W. Perley, Noble Grand ; Silvers Porter,

Vice Grand ; E. W. Cox, Secretary ; G. Arthur,
Permanent Secretary ; Thomas Durban, Treas-
urer. Trustees—T. L. Fracker, L. H. Bige-
low and G. Arthur.
Moxahala Lodge has never suflfered the ap-

peal of the widow or orphan to go unheeded.
Her members have noble hearts, and never saw
"the righteous forsaken, or his seed begging
bread." Members have been added who have
been found worthy to bear the armor of her pio-

neer chieftains, as one by one they laid it down,
thus ever bearing aloft the glorious banner, on
which is inscribed. Friendship, Love and Truth.

Since its organization, Moxahala has received
within her borders, by invitation, 389 members!
Her present active membership is 133, and her
dormant list 149.

The total amount of her general fund is $4,525 23

Widows and orphans 326 83

Total Assets $4,852 06

During her history, she has added to her list of
Past Grands: W. R. Hazlett, C. C. Russell,

Samuel G. McBride, W. B. Hubbell, George
D. Gibbons, John Gerwick, George W. Griffin,

W. M. Chappelear, Wm. Lee, T. L. Fracker,
T. B. Townsend, Joseph Crosby, W. A. Brown,
W. H. Smallwood, Chas. Symons, M. Richman,
L. D. Sandel, James Bridwell, John T. Irvine,

Wm. A. Twaddle, George W. Coon, Hiram
Waller, Isaac Hillier, W. H. Minter, John C.
Taylor, Samuel Bateman, Samuel Oldham,
John W. Howland, John Brooks, Edward Gigax,
David Stewart, John T. Lynn, W. H. Duvall,
R. G. Leuman, Robert Butler, Wm. Mangold,
Milton Strait, W. S. Hannum and Elisha Peairs.

Present officers : Noble Grand, George Mur-
dock ; Vice Grand, Charles E. Huff"; Permanent

Secretary, Theodore McCadden ; Recording
Secretary, W. H. Shepherd ; Treasurer, W. H.
Smallwood- Trustees—S. G. McBride, Ed-
ward Gigax, R. S. Butler, F. S. Gates and R.
G. Leuman.
Within the last decade, Moxahala has received

many valuable members, and with her steadily

increasing Treasury, her power for good, and
the promulgation of the sublime principles of the

order, is a just source of pride.

They meet in Odd Fellows' Hall.

Odd Fellows' Hall.—February 22d, 185 1,

Muskingum Lodge appointed a committee, con-

sisting ofBrothers Howard, Pike, Church, Frack-
er, and Brenholts, with instructions to petition

the Legislature of Ohio for a charter for a Hall

Association. The same month, by special act,

a charter was granted, creating " Odd Fellows'

Hall Association," with Robert Howard, as Pres-

ident. The brethren of the Lodges represented,

subscribed for the greater part of the stock, which
consisted of two hundred and forty-one shares,

at fifty dollars each, taken as follows :

Muskingum Lodge, eighty-four shares.

Moxahala Lodge, fifty-six shares.

Mechanics Lodge, twenty-three shares.

Howard Encampment, forty-six shares, arid

the remainder was taken by citizens, not mem-
bers. The stock has since been sold at one hun-
dred dollars per share.

In 1851, the Association purchased of Apple-
gate & Tallant, parts of lots i and 2, east half,

fronting on the south side of Main. street, corner
of fhe alley, for the sum of $4,000, and erected

thereon a substantial three-story brick building,

that even at this day is regarded as one of the

imposing structures of Zanesville. The cost of

this edifice was $24,000.
The Hall was dedicated with the usual impos-

ing ceremonies, on Thursday, September oth,

1852. The street parade was a grand afl&ir;

some three hundred and fifty of the resident Odd
Fellows and visiting brethren were in the ranks.
The long procession, as it passed through the

principal streets, was the subject of many well-

merited compliments. The Hon. L. P. Marsh,
of this city, delivered the address, after which
the dedication ceremonies were performed. The
occasion was enlivened by the Wheeling and
Dresden Bands, discoursing choice and appro-
priate rhusic. The scene closed by a grand ball

and supper, which was largely attended by the

wives and daughters of the membei-s.

The Degree of Rebecca.—The origin of this

beautiful degree has been credited to the Hon.
Schuyler Colfax, who, with William T. Martin
and E. G. Steele, a committee of the Grand
Lodge, appointed to mature it, reported it. to

that body, by whom it was adopted, September
15th, 1 85 1. It was felt to be needed, in order to

satisfy the longing of the wives and daughters of
the brethren to share the joyous contemplation of

the work of benevolence,and the " labor of love,"

as well. And when they remembered Hannah,
Deborah, Ruth, Esther, Sarah, Miriam and Re-

Rick
Highlight



HISTORY OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO. 193

becca of old, how noted they were for just such
devotion and self-isacrifice as are practiced by
every true Odd Fellow, the demand for such a

bond of union, as this beautiful degree supplies,

became imperative.

Elizabeth Lodge, No. 26.—This Lodge was
instituted January 12, 1870, in Zanesville, at Odd
Fellows' Hall, by the Grand Master of the State,

James Turner, of Dayton, Ohio, assisted by Past
Grands, William Langton, Harvey Hubbell,

Thomas Sloan, and C. Fracker ; the following

persons appeared as charter members : Charles
Neimeyer, Isabella Neimeyer, Isaac Pierso], E.

V. Piersol, Lewis Brenholts, Sidney Brenholts,

John Bowman, Elizabeth Bowman, E. L. Grigs-

by, Nancy Grigsby, John Greiner, Maria Grein
er, Wolf Dryfus, Eva Dryfus, T. L. Fracker, J.
H. Coke.George W. Griffin, Hattie Griffee, Isaac

Hillier, Sarah Hillier, Ferdinand Hess, Theresa
Hess, A. Schaum, Elizabeth Schaum, Elizabeth

Howard,Wm. L. Langton, and Isabella Langtoh.
The large and elegant Lodge room was filled

to its utmost capacity by the members of the sev-

eral Lodgfes. The name, Elizabeth, was chosen,

in honor of Elizabeth Howard, consort of the

late Robert Howard, after whom the Encamp-
ment was named.
The exercises of institution being concluded,

the installation of officers into their respective

stations was conducted by the Grand Master and
assistants named above. The first officers were

:

Noble Grand, W. L. Langton ; Vice Grand, E.

V. Piersol ; Secretary, Hattie Griffee ; Treasurer,

W. Dryfus.
The occasion was then rnade social by con-

gratulatory speeches, remarkable for the flow of

cheerful and fraternal sentiment, such as will long

be remembered by the participants. Prominent
among those who specially enlivened the occa-

sion was "old Governor," P.G., John Greiner,

noted for his wit, poetry and song. He wrote a

song entitled, the " Daughters of Rebecca," and
sang it on the occasion. A sirhple slab, with its

inscription, marks the place where the beloved

Patriarch sleeps ; but his memory is embalmed in

the hearts of the fraternity.

Isaac Piersol, another of the charter members,
untiring and zealous in the performance of duty,

has passed the portals whence no traveler re-

turns, and for whom the fraternity cherish fond

recollections.

Among the distinguished members who sur-

vive that day, is "Aunty Howard," widow of the

Patriarch, of Encampment fame. Bereft of her

most worthy companion, she leans, so to speak,

on [he arm of the fraternity, by whom she is es-

pecially honored. She is held to sustain the

same touching relation to the Sisters as did Sarah
of old to the mothers in Israel.

John W. Andrews, the present Treasurer,

who has been one of the principal supporters and
counsellors, seldom or never fails to attend

the meetings, although living several miles away.
His zeal commends itself to every member of the

fraternity, and inspires their devotion.

The present officers are : Noble Grand, Jacob
Strait ; Vice Grand, Mrs. Melissa Mechliii ; Re-
cording Secretary, Mrs. Elizabeth Bryan ; Treas-
urer, John W. Andrews. The meetings are held
in the Odd Fellows' Lodge room, on the second
and fourth Friday evenings of each month.
WooDLAWN Lodge,No. 228.T~Special Deputy,

Alexander Glenn, assisted by Past Grands,Thom-
as Durban, Robert Howard, and Henry Granger,
instituted this Lodge March i6th, 1854, the fol-

lowing Brothers appearing as charter members :

J. B. Erwin, Alexander Stewart, Nicholas Rem-
linger, Frederick Dietrich, G. F. Wiles, George
Wolford, N. K. Smith, Norman Dodge, John C.
Wilbur, Leroy S. Perry, G. F. Mervan, and
Richard B. Osmond.
Woodlawn took high rank as a working Lodge,

from its inception, gathering within its folds those

inspired with a lively zeal for good deeds.

The first officers were : Noble Grand, Freder-
ick Deitrich ; Vice Grand, J. B. Erwin ; Secre-

tary, G. F. Wiles ; Treasurer, G. F. Mervin.
Twenty-six years of history in the work of Be-

neA'olence, have enriched her members, in the

promulgation of her sacred teachings, and ex-

panded their charities, until the mantle has cov-

ered a multitude ; while time has wrinkled the

brow, and silvered the locks .of many yet with

us, and thinned the ranks by death, until the

warning that all must pass away is but too pain-

fully evident ; and amid this wreck, where, but

for the grand ministrations of Odd Fellowship,

all would have been gloom and desolation, is

found the fruits of her work, in comfort for the

widow and orphan, and the solace for the death

bed—of well done, thou good and faithful ser-

vant. It would be invidious, where so many
have been faithful, to institute comparison.

There are those, however, who have specially

signalized themselves for their energj' and zeal

in the' cause, as, for instance, the ven-

erable Past Grand, Francis R. Potts

;

his Hfe, he exemplified the fraternalin

love inculcated by Odd Fellowship. Past

Grand, H. B. Taylor, who was seldom per-

mitted to be out of office, was noted for his legis-

lative ability, and the records show his zeal in

discharging his duties as an Odd Fellow.

"Though now entombed their mortal frauMS may lie,

That which so endeared them, shall never die."

There are man^' noble workers in this Lodge.
Of the charter members remaining, Past Grand,
Frederick Dietrich, G. F. Wiles, and Nicholas

Remlinger, deserve special mention for their un-

tiring devotion to the grand principles of the Or-

der; many years of service, have made these

dearer to them, and they, by their influence, have

implanted them in the breasts, of many who have

been led to the fold bj^ their example.

Of the initiated, John H. Drake, who was
among the first, has attained an enviable distinc-

tion for thorough acquaintance with Lodge busi-

ness, and the care with which he performs the

duties entrusted to him ; ability and zeal charac-

terize his efforts.

ss
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John W. Andrews, the present Representa-
tive, and Deputy Grand Master, of Muskingura
county, is one of the most zealous members of

the fraternity in this section of the State ; the

great cause of human brotherhood finds in him a

zealous and intelligent advocate.

The following comprise the list of the Past

Grands: F. Dietrich, G. F. Wiles, Perry
Wiles, N. R. Smith, E. A. Farquhar, Sr,, H.
Israel, J. H. Drake, A. R. Josselyn, N. Rem-
linger, J. S. Marcellus, Joseph Shaw, Joseph
Crooks, D. Hammelbach, S. C. Haver, J. A.
Parshall, M. F. Able, J. W. Andrews, H. Rat-
chfF, T. Berkshire, William Phillips, W. C.

Townsend, J. T. Palmer, and E. A. Farqu-
har, Jr.

The present officers are : N. G., James Cur-
tis ; V. G., J. P. Taylor ; Recording Secretary,

J. A. Parshall ; Permanent Secretary, John
Bowers ; Treasurer, Nicholas Remlinger ; Trus-
tees, Joseph Shaw, J. Marcellus and T. C. Berk-
shire.

During the twenty-six years of her existence,

Woodlawn Lodge has initiated two hundred and
nine members, and received thirty by card. The
present active membership is eighty-five.

The financial condition shows an investment of

$2,000 in good securities, and a widows'-and oi*-

phans' fund of $1,000, showing a healthy condi-

tion, and with the well known energy and fidel-

ity of her standard bearers, great things will con-

tinue to be done in the name of the Order.
Mechanics Lodge, I. O. O. F.,'No. 230

—

The charter was granted by the Grand Lodge,
in session in Circleville, Ohio, February, 1854.

Alex. V. Glenn, Grand Secretary, was deputized
to institute the new Lodge, in Zanesville, March
24, 1854. The following were the charter mem-
bers : M. Keyes, Lewis Slyder, Jacob Lyda,
William H. Christ, Thomas Griffith, William H.
Shaffer, R. S. Fairchild, John Kuhn, A. J.
Hahn, William L. Langton, and Frederick
Howell.
The Deputy Grand Master, assisted by Dis-

trict Deputy, Henry Granger, of Muskingum
Lodge, with other visiting brethren, instituted

Mechanics Lodge, No. 230, and installed the

officers, who were : Jacob Lyda, N. G. ; Lewis
Slyder, V. G. ; Frederick Howell, Secretary

;

William H. Shaffer, Treasurer.
Of the charter members, William H. Christ,

Lewis Slyder, A.J. Hahn. and J. Kuhn, have
passed "over the river."

The first initiated were John Drumm, James
P. Kimberly, and Henry Keonig ; the ceremony
took place on the night of the institution, by
special dispensation.

The following have served as Past Grands,
named in the order of their service : Jacob Ly-
der, Fred Howell, William L. Langton, George
Rishtine, William Woodside, John A. Arter,
Henry Bimple, William Leffler, Wolf Dryfus,
John J. James, Richard Fairchild, James Mcin-
tosh, Jacob Gigax, Zachariah Reed, John Mack,
Charles Claspill, Joseph L. Dryfus, William D.
Arter, Harvey Hubbell, Benjamin Fell, E. L.

Nosker, J. H. Coke, J. R. Moll, W. H. Toye,

B. S. Dryfus, John A. Morrow, George R.
Humphrey, J. S. Arter, Jacob Beiser, J. A.
Miner, John H. Best, M. Calhoon, S. Frank, W.
H. Mast, G. Suter, R. B. Brown, G. F. Hughes,
Charles Gigax and Dudley Waller.

The average amount paid out for sick benefits,

of late years, has been $250 per annum. The
average amount of current expenses,- including

the above, and relief of widows and orphans, and
burialof the dead, $800. The receipts from all

sources, an average of $1,000. The general

fund of the Lodge amounts to $3,545.98. The
widows' and orphans' fund, $546.67, invested

in good securities.

The officers are : Noble Grand, W. F. Amos ;

Vice Grand, Lewis H. Miller; Recording Sec-

retary, W. F. Miller; Permanent Secretary, J.

H. Coke ; Treasurer, W. Dryfus.

The latter officer was first elected in 1866, and
has been continued in office ; comment is unnec-

essary.

Trustees—W. L. Langton," George Rishtine,

R. B. Brown, B. S. Dryfus, John A. Morrow.

Mozart Lodge, No. 423.—At the session of

the Grand Lodge, held in May, 1869, application

was made by Brothers Fred. Geiger, O. A. Du-
vee, A. Shaum, Henry Koenig, C. Sunkle, Phil-

lip Muhl, Henry Roekel, Adam Young, Fred
Kappes, E. Dresher, William Derringer, J.

Baum, William Bick, and Henry Knoedler,aror

a charter for a Lodge, authorized to work in the

German" language. The petition was granted,

and on the 25th of June, of the same year. Spe- •

cial Deputy Grand Master, Henry Lindenberg,
of Columbus, assisted by P. G. Remlinger, of

Woodlawn Lodge, instituted Mozart Lodge,
No. 423, the petitioners appearing as charter

members.

The instituting officer, with his assistants, then

installed the following, being the first officers :

N. G., Ferdinand Hess ; V. G., Adam Young j

Secretary, O. A. Duvee ; Treasurer. F. Kappes..

This Lodge started under the encouraging
auspices of abundant material for good Odd Fel-

lows, being found among our German citizens.

And now, after eleven years' labor, with the

vicissitudes attendant on the affairs of men, hei"

active membership is eighty-four.

The ravages of death have been here, howev-
er, and from among those who kindled the fire

upon this altar of love. Brothers Duvee and
Young have passed—beyond the portals. But
their genial natures, and zeal in the cause of the

brotherhood, enshrine them in the memory of

every true Odd Fellow, and inspire him to emu-
late their virtues.

Of the remainder of this pioneer band, some
have become stalwarts in the cause. Among
these, remaining with the Lodge are, Geiger,

Schaum, Hess, Muhl, Kappes, Derringer, Sun-
kle, and Zinsmeister, to whose exertions the

successful growth of Mozart (the first German
Lodge in this section of the State) is due.

The substantial character of her work may be

Rick
Highlight



196 HISTORY OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO,

erhood, and particularly the Encampment. He
ever exemplified the sublime principles taught by
the fraternity ; the practice of them rendered
purer his spiritual life. He passed quietly away,
June i8th, 1867, full of love and ripe in years.

There are other bright lights, whose great moral
influence still illumines our pathway, as we jour-

ney to meet them in the " Svyeet bye and bye ;"

among these are, Thomas Durban, and Lewis
Slyder, who were particularly zealous in the cause
of brotherly love.

The present officers are as follows: W. H.
Smallwood, Chief Patriarch ; R. B. Brown, Sen-
ior Warden; S. Stockdale, Junior Wai-den

;

George D. Gibbons, High Priest ; W. R. Haz-
lett. Scribe, and W. Dryfus, Treasurer.

The Past Chief Patriarchs are : W. R. Haz-
lett, George D. Gibbons, E. H. Church, Samuel
D. McBride, G. W. Griffee„C. Simmons, W, H.
Deffenbaugh, C. B. Gray, W. B. Hubbell, John
Gerrick, J. J. Arter, E. L. Grigsby, Henry Gran-
ger, E. P. Moorehead, M. Richnian, J. Brid-

well, Zachariah Reed, Thomas Drake, D. M.
Coultrap, F. M. HolHster, Thomas Crippen, J.
S. Marcellus, Jacob Lyda, L. M. Sloan, G. W.
Ebert, H. Shrimpton, J. A. Morrow, Frederick
Dietrich, G. R. Bostwick, W. H. Minter, W. L.
Langton, M. H; Fountain, I. V. Wing, David
Stewart, J. R. Moll, W, S. Harlan, J. C. Tay-
lor, John Mack, Charles Niemeyer, W. S. Bell,

T. D. McCaddon, W. H. Mast, Louis F. Smith,
and Frederick Ehman.
The present membership is one hundred and

seventy-nine. The Encampment has expended
$5,916.00, for the relief of members, and has
safely invested $3,600.00, with a surplus fund in

cash, on hand, of $475.10; making a grand to-

tal of $9,991.10.
The place of meeting is in " Odd Fellows'

Hall," Lodge room. The present Most Worthy
Grand Master, H. P. Gravatt, is succeeded in

the office of Most Worthy Grand Master of the

Independent Order of Odd Fellows of the State

of Ohio, by W. R. Hazlett, who was elected in

December last, and will be installed. May 12th,

proximo. This is the first time that Southeastern
Ohio, has been thus honored ; and it is cei^tainly

a well-deserved compliment ; one that the Odd
Fellows of Zanesville, and the Muskingum Val-
ley, feel particularly proud of, and a promotion
that reflects credit on the fraternity throughout
the State.

ODD fellows' beneficial ASSOCIATION.

The following is the Twelfth Annual Report
of the Odd Fellows' Beneficial Association, of

Muskingum Valley, Ohio, which was organized
April 26, 1869, and incorporated March 12, 1873.

The incorporators were Hon. John Greiner, E,
P. Moorehead, H. B. Taylor, R. B. Osmond,
George Rishtine, J. J. James, W. R. Hazlett,

and James D. Ford.
Officers for 1881—George Rishtine, President

;

J. A. Parshall, Vice-President; William S- Har-
lan, Treasurer ; W. R. Hazlett, Secretary.

Trustees for 1881—M. V. Gates, W. S. Har-

lan, G. W. Ebert, Muskingum Lodge, No. 28;
William R. Hazlett, Theodore D. McCaddon,
R. G. Lewman, Moxahala Lodge, No. 44; J.
A. Parshall, J. W. Andrews, W. E. Nesbaum,
Woodlawn Lodge, No. 228 ; George Rishtine,

Wolf Dryfus, John A. Morrow, Mechanics
Lodge, No. 230; A. J. Schauni, J. Zinsmeister,

Peter Dick, Mozart Lodge, No. 423.

RESIDENT, TKUSTEES FOB 1881.

George L. Conn Jefferson

M. K. Marshall., Golumbia
Worley Adams Valley

W. M. Cline Huron
Joshua Josselyn Summit
B. L. Wigginton : Eingold

T. L.Elwell. Eural
James H. Colvig ;. Barnesville

I. N. Knowlton Cumberland
Elchard Millikan Temple
NealM. Beckley New Lexington
Thomas E. McKisson Belmont

J. D. Rex Woodgrove
W. H. H. Mcllyar Cambridge
Martin Adams Fostoria

P. H. Shough Somerset

Daniel Logee Anderson

Fritz Eeef Woodsfield

Lewis Haag Star

Wolcott Chaffee Portage

J. T. Sivalls Elmore
C. E. Buchanan .-. Lewisville

Will W. Messerly Clarington

James A. Palmer.. Coolville

Samuel Cockrill Taylorsville

H. H. Wolf Haydenviile

S. S. McFarland Gem
J. C. Stone Eacine

E. M. Donnelly Whitney
John C. Thompson Helena
W. F. Johnston Miltonsburg

W. S. Van Horn Centerton

Isaac Starkey ; Powhatan
George J. White Centennial

Charles Barth McPherson
W. Petersons Acme
Ed. McDade : Letart

Philip Darby Wheeling, W. Va.

C. W. Butler Mechanics

secretary's report.

Zanesville, O., April 29, 1881.

I present herewith the Twelfth Annual Report

of this Association, and in doing so it gives me
pleasure to inform you that the year just closing

has been one of unprecedented prosperity, not

only financially, but also in the increase of mem-
bers, and in the small number of deaths we have

had.

During the existence of this Association, the

sum of $72,950.00 has been distributed among
the heirs of its deceased members, at a total cost

to the insured of $2,751.75.

This large amount has been collected, and ex-

pended, at a comparative small cost, and few

have suff'ered even temporary inconvenience by

the amount they have contributed.
'

It may be urged by some who have paid their

assessments for a time and then forfeited their

membership, that thej' have lost just that amount.

That is a great error, for they were protected

while paying, and no member has ever paid

more than the actual cost of his insurance.

Lodge
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and the following officers elected : Mrs. H. G.
O. Cary, President and Treasurer; Miss Kate
Brown, Secretary.

The object of this Mission is "to promote the

religious, moral, and temporal welfare of chil-

dren ; especially to teach them sewing, and the

cutting and preparation of garments, in an eco-

nomical manner."
A distinct aim of the school has been to

awaken in the children self-respect, and a desire

to help themselves. A solid basis for pure and
honest lives has been laid in Scripture lessons,

and verses memorized at each meeting. Im-
provement in sewing, in cleanliness, and orderly

habits, has, in most cases, been very rapid.

The average yearly enrollment has been one
hundred and forty ; the attendance during the

winter months has been from fifty to one hundred
and twenty. Many of the pupils, as they have ar-

rived at a suitable age, have secured good situa-

tions, and a marked improvement has taken
place in the children's homes.
The school has completed eleven years of

labor, with much profit, under the superintend-

ence of Mrs. Cary, supported by the faithful

teachers: Misses—H. Purcell Early, Wil-
mot, Cora Hubbell, Bessie Guthrie, Carrie

Beaumont, E. Thompson, Lucy Hazlett, Mrs.
Chas. Abbott, Stenger, Ellen Hazlett,

Allen and B. F. Hersh.
Officers for 1880

:

President and Treasurer—Mrs. H. G. O. Cary.
Vice Preside.nt—Mrs. J. B. Allen.

Secretary—Miss Eva J. Thompson.
The Y. M. C. A., is the churches' mission to

young men. It is steadily growing in numbers
and increasipg in strength. Its purpose is be-

coming better defined and better understood.

Like other children, it has had to pass through
the troubles and difficulties of infancy, and is

to-day a great power in the land.

BUILDING ASSOCIATIONS.

Muskingum Building Association.—This
Association was incorporated November 21st,

1872. The stock consisted of twenty-five hun-
dred shares, at two hundred dollars each. The
organization took place December 20th, 1872.

The following Directors were elected at the

December meeting

:

Thomas Durban, E. S. Garner, Alex. Grant,
C. T. DeVelling, Peter Black, Thomas Griffith,

George D. Gibbons, D. T. Johnson and W. H.
McOwen.
The first officers were :

President—Thomas Durban.
Vice President—E. S. Garner.
Treasurer—Alex. Grant,

Secretary—C. C. DeVelling.
Attorney—Judge L. P. Marsh. '

"The object of the Association is to raise

funds, to be loaned among the members, or

others, for buying and building homesteads, or

improving the same, and for other purposes."
The members of the association must pay, for

every share, twenty-five cents every week, on

Saturday, as dues. The Constitution provides

that each share-holder shall be entitled to a loan

of two hundred dollars for each share held by
him. These loans are made by a public sale of

money on the last Saturday of each month, at the

office of the association. The persons bidding
the highest premium take precedence in receiv-

ing the loans, paying, monthly, six per cent, per

annum. There are also fines for neglect to pay
the weekly dues for more than four weeks.
The profits to the association arise by reason

of the premium, bid for loans, interest on money
loaned, fines and fees for transferring stock on
the books of the association. The total of these

items, after deducting the current expenses, is

divided fro rata among all the stock-holders.

Whenever the assets of the association are

sufficient to pay such share-holder two hundred
dollars for each share of stock he may own, this

association shall be dissolved.

Officers and Directors for 1881 :

President—Robert Silvey.

Vice President—Thomas Griffith.

Treasurer—Alex. Grant.
Secretary and Attorney—T. F. Spangler.
Directors—Robert Silvey, T. S. Black, Thos.

Griffith, Alex. Grant, Robert Fulton, Joseph
Shaw, George D. Gibbons, E. P. Bloomer,
and Thos. W. Gattrell.

The McIntire Building Association was
incorporated June 22d, 1877. The formal or-

ganization was affected July 30th, 1877, and the

following Directors elected : Alex. Grant, F. J.
L. Blandy, Thomas Griffith, Daniel Applegate,
Thomas Lindsay, John W. Conrad, R. B.
Brown, Henry L. Korte and Chas. W. Fletcher.

The officers chosen were as follows :

President—F. J. L. Blandy.
Vice President—Chas. .W. Fletcher.

Treasurer—Alex. Grant.
Secretary and Attorney—T. F. Spangler.
The stock consists of two thousand shares, at

fifteen" dollars each. The minor details of the

woi'king, and the object of the Association, are

similar to those of the Muskingum Association.

Officers and Directors for 1881.

President—F. J. L. Blandy.
Vice President-^-Thomas Lindsay.
Treasurer—Alex. Grant.
Secretary and Attorney—T. F. Spangler.
Directors—F. J. L. Blandy, Thomas Lindsay,

R. B. Brown, Alex. Grant, John W. Conrade,
M. L. Korte, Daniel Applegate, Thomas Grif-

fith and James T. Irvine.

The Union Building Company, of Zanes-
viLLE, Ohio.—This was incorporated March
5th, 1880. The shares of stock are twenty-five

hundred, at one hundred dollars each. The
mode of working and the object, the same as

those above enumerated.
The officers ai^e

:

President—Thomas Griffith.

Vice President—W. A. Graham.
Treasurer—Alex. Grant.
Secretary and Attorney—T. F, Spangler.
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April 6, 1868—Marshal, J. C. Wolf. City
Solicitor, A. J. Andrews. Trustee of Water
Works, William Ruth. Constables, James D.
Mitchell, Benjamin Spangler. Councilmen, Jo-
seph Crosby, Samuel Clark, William Ruth, Cur-
ran Blue, William Geiger, C. Fletcher, Conrad
Fletcher, W. E. James. Board of Education,
George W. Green, George W. GrifFee. Asses-
sors, William Munro, David Keeley, John A.
Daugherty, William A. Burkhart, E. L. Grigs-
by, William Nutt. The, vote on the annexation
of Putnam to Zanesville, is reported as 1456 in

favor, and 28 against.

April 5, 1869.—Mayor, William Ruth. Mar-
shal, J. C. Wolf. City Clerk, George D. Gib-
bons. Citj' Solicitor, Albion J. Andrews. Trus-
tee of Water Works, F. Hirschley. City Civil

Engineer, James P. Egan. Sti^eet Commission-
er, Daniel Smith. Justice of the Peace, G. L.
Phillips. Constables, John J. Arter, J. D. Mitch-
ell. Councilmen, F. A. Thompson, D. Apple-
gate, C. Blue, H. Deffenbaugh, John H. Gorm-
ley, William H. McOwen, Frank Horn. Board
of Education, J. W. Conrade, Adam Fletcher,
F. A. Victor. Assessors, William Munro, Wil-
liam Wright, George A. Daugherty, Elijah Sul-
livan, John J. Patterson, William Nutt, Sr.

March 29, 1870. Election on the question of
appropriating twenty-five thousand dollars, for

the purpose of building a railroad in Zanesville
—In favor, 1077 votes ; against, 16 votes. Ma-
jority in favor, 1061.

April 4, 1870.—Justice of the Peace, H. W.
Chandler. Constables, J. J. Arter, William
Nutt. Treasurer, William Price. Trustee of
Water Works, George Rishtine. Cit}^ Commis-
sioner, John Stone. Trustees of Cemeteries,
William N. Shinnick, G. W. Blocksom, W. H.
Deffenbaugh. Councilmen, Robert Price, Thos.
Lindsay, Benjamin Spangler, C. Stoltzenbach,
Henry Blandy, John L. Taylor. Assessors,
William Wright, George A. Daugherty, Elijah

Sullivan, J. J. Patterson, William Nutt. Board
of Education, William C. Hurd, George W.
Griffee, Isaac Pearsall.

October 11. 1870—Special Election.—For an-
nexation of Putnam—"Yes," 1818 votes; "No,"
49 votes. For annexation of West Zanesville

—

"Yes," 1939 votes ; "No," 34 votes.

April 3, 1871.—Mayor, William Ruth. Mar-
shal, William Jennings. Trustee of Water
Works, George H. Vroom. City Solicitor, Al-
bion J. Andrews. Civil Engineer, A. J. Spaul-
ding. Trustee of Cemetery, W. H. Deffen-
baugh. Justice of the Peace, John J. James.
Constables, John Arter, William Nutt, Coun-
cilmen, F. A. Thompson, D. Applegate, Cur-
ran Blue, F. H. Achauer, W. H. McOwen,
Michael McDonald, Edward Bailey, William T.
Maher. Board of Education, Richard Hocking,
S.J. Moore. Assessors, William Munro, Wil-
liam Wright, George A. Daugherty, Elijah Sul-
livan, J. J. Patterson, William Nutt, Sr., Robert
Delany, W. H. Search.

April I, 1872.—^Justice of the Peace, Joseph
S. Parke. Constables, J. J. Arter, William

Nutt, Sr. City Commissioner, John Slone.

Trustee of Water Works, Patrick Dugan. Trus-
tee of Cemetery, A. E. Cook. Councilmen,
Robert Price, Eugene Printz, Robert D. Shultz,

Frank Meyers, Henry Blandy, James L, Taylor,

P. P. Morgan, E. B. Williams. Board of Edu-
cation, J. V. Smeltzer, M. Calhoun, Richard
Hocking. Assessors, William Munro, William
Wright, George A. Daugherty, James Ryan, J.

J. Patterson, William Nutt, Sr., R. Delaney.
City Commissioner, Daniel Smith. For annex-
ation of Putnam, "Yes," 1499 votes ; "No," 615
votes.

Special election, June 17, 1872. Vote on the

quesion of issuing bonds to the amount of $100,-

000, for the purpose of building the Zanesville,

Cumberland and Caldwell Railroad. In favor of

the measure, 1,193 votes. Against the measure,
eighty-seven votes.

April 7, 1873.—Mayor, Robert F. Brown.
Marshal, John J. Arter. City Solicitor, Allen

Miller. Trustee of Water Works, C. R. Hub-
bell. Trustees of Cemetery, Wm. S. Harlan
and Joseph Shaw. City Civil Engineer, A. J.
Spaulding. Councilmen, A. E. Cook, Daniel
Applegate-, B. F. Spangler, Fred Dietrich, C.
W. Fletcher, Michael McDonald, Samuel G.
McBride, Wm. Foran, Geo. W. Guthrie. Board
of Education, W. H. Hurd, Geo. W. GrifFee,

Henrv Shrimpton, Daniel Dugan. Assessors,

T. H" Patrick, Wm. Wright, C. J. Dieterly,

James F. Ryan, Joseph J. Patterson, Wm. Nutt,

Robert Delaney, Wm. F. Plants. Justice of

the Peace, Henry S. Harding. Constables,

James D. Mitchell, James G. Hannum.
April 8, 1874.—Justice of the Peace, John J.

James. Constables, James G. Hannum, Wm.
Nutt. Trustee of Water Works, Thomas
Lindsay. Trustee of Cemetery, Geo. R.
Humphrey. Cit}' Commissioner, R. A. Cun-
ningham. City Infirmary Directors, Enoch S.

Huff, Horatio Chandler. Councilmen, Robert
Price, Henry J. Dennis, John Leis, Andrew
La Fleur, Henrj^ Blandv, Thomas McCormick,
Horace D. Munson, Sr"., Wm. T. Maher, Or-
lando C. Farquhar. Board of Education, Daniel
Dugan. Assessors, Thomas H. Patrick, John W.
Campbell, George Dougherty, Adolph Kreuter,

John P. Taggart, Wm. Nutt, A. C. Smith, W.
F. Plants, M. F. Nevitt.

April 5, 1875.—Mayor, Calvin C. Gibson.
Marshal, J. C. Wolf. " City Solicitor, Wm. C.
Blocksom. City Civil Engineer, James P.
Egan. Trustee of Water Works, Robert D.
Shultz. Trustee of Cemetery, Wm. H. Ball.

City Infirmary Directors, John Launder, H. W.
Chandler. Constables, Jacob Bash, John D.
Sode. Justice of the Peace, Fred Hirshey.
Councilmen, Thomas Durban, Chas. Brendell,
Edward P. Bloomer, J. B. Brown, C. W.
Fletcher, John J. Thomas, Vance B. Lewis,
Wm. Moran, Periy Wiles. Board of Education,
James A. Cox, Wm. Lillienthal, R. Hocking,
A. C. Smith, James C. Gillespie. Assessors,
T. H. Patrick, Geo. Jenkins, G. H, Daugherty,
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new, world, and also with their surroundings,

which often had much to do with shaping their

course, and, doubtless, kept many a genius in

obscurity, and a mei-e mention of those celebri-

ties would be trite and unwelcome. This sketch,

however, is intended for the general reader, and
so we indulge in a recapitulation concerning

some who won their laurels in America. The
first practicing artist of celebrity, in the United
States, was John Watson, born in Scotland, in

1685 ; he commenced painting portraits in New
Jersey, in 17 15. Nathaniel Smybert, of Edin-
burgh, began in Boston, in 1728. Benjamin
West was the first native American artist ; born
in Chester county, Pennsylvania, in 1768 ;

paint-

ed his first portrait in Lancaster, Pennsylvania,

in 1753. John Singleton Copley was born in

Boston, in 1738 ; first painted in 1760 ; he was the

father of Lord Lyndhurst, Lord Chancellor of

Great Britain. Charles W. Peale, was born in

Maryland, in 1741 ; Gilbert Charles Stuart, Rhode
Island, 1754 ; John Trumbull , Connecticut, 1756 ;

William Dunlap, New Jersey, 1766; E. G. Mal-
bone, Rhode Island, 1777 ; and were among the

artists to win distinction in the United States.

Dunlap was the author of an able work on "Arts
of Design."
The reader need not be told that the number

of artists has greatly increased since their day,

for during this centur};-, the world has taken it

for granted, that a home is not to be thought of

with bare walls. In art life, as in every other

sphere of man, it has come to pass, that fidelity

has brought excellence, and excellence has in-

creased the demand, which has also so reduced
the expense that every home may have these

luxuries, and in many instances, the work of

their own hands. The refinement consequent
on developing the talent for art is too evident to

admit of argument, and we proceed to speak of

its manifestations in Zanesville.

May 3, 1880, the work done by Miss Dunlap
and her class in drawing and painting was an-

nounced for exposition. And while it is true

that "home talent" is praised, as a matter of

course, it is correct to say that the work exhibited

was highly meritorious, and attracted special

attention from home and foreign cities.

Miss Mary Stuart Dunlap is a graduate of

Putman Seminary ; studied painting under James
Beard, of College Hill, and Mrs. Beers, at

Cooper Institute. To her was reserved the op-

portunity to develop the talent of many ladies

of Zanesville. Their success is certainly com-
plimentarjr to her. The themes have been hap-

pily chosen, and well rendered. The landscape

predominated, and gave evidence of the inspira-

tion expressed by the poet, when he said :

" There is a pleasure in the pathless woods,

There is a rapture on the lonely shore,

There is society where none intrudes,

By the deep sea, and music in its roar

;

I love not man the less, but nature more,

Pronj these our interviews."

It has been customary for her class to study

arts and artists, 'and it is probable that the sub-
jects were pretty well mastered, for among the
members of her class were :—Misses Cora Hub-
bell, Lida Black, Hatton, S. E. Rollo,
Mary Munson, Effie Munson, Lucretia Stultz,

Laura Wiles, Mary Lynn, Mamie Atwell, Daisj'

Shryock, and Mrs. Canfield, Minnie Munson,
(Dr.) Barton, Franklin Cooper and Mrs. Hirsh.
Among the specimens of work exhibited, was

a landscape by Miss Laura Wiles ; a panel with
landscape. Miss Mar3r Munson ; a fan, with blos-

soms and birds, Mrs. Dr. Barton ; flowers on
panel. Miss Hatton ; a deer head in crayon, Mrs.
Canfield ; butters, decorated in birds and flowers,

and an initial letter. Miss Rollo
;
palette, with

odd design, Miss Atwell; palette, blackberries
and flowers, Mrs. Hirsh ; unique design on china
plates, Japanese, Miss Munson ; and manj-
other fine specimens ; the reception was a great

success, and a just source of pride to lovers of
art in Zanesville.

Among the artists in Zanesville, we find

Adams, Lyons, Brewer, Howland, Barton and
Craig. Mr. Barton was born in Zanesville, and
in early life began to exhibit his talent with pen-
cil, India ink, etc., and yet was never regularly

instructed ; he painted his first picture in 1842,
and has since devoted his time and talent to oil

painting. In the spring of 1844, he studied in

the National Academy of Design, in New York,
and after sixteen months, returned to his native

city. In 1875, he visited Europe for the purpose
of seeing the works of the great masters.

At the Exposition in December, 1880, in the

Art Department, was exhibited " Yosemite
Valley," by J. P. Barton ; a view taken from the

summit of Mariposa Trail, showing the whole of

that wonderful Valley. On the left of the picture

is seen El Capitan, three thousand five hundred
feet high ; on the right. Bridal Veil Falls ; in the

middle distance. Half Dome ; in the middle
foreground, at the base of Bridal Veil Falls,

Mirror Lake, than which nothing grander has
yet been seen ; in the foreground, the peculiar

and gigantic flora of California. By the same
artiste "Assumption of the Blessed Virgin."
The great painters have delighted in this theme.
A high authority tells of more than five hundred
different styles of Madonnas ; this is a splendid

copy after Murillo, purchased in Brussels by the

late Mr. Aspinwall, for ten thousand dollars.

There were also a number of portraits of well-

known citizens, highly prized for their life-like

character. Mr. Charles Craig had a "View on
Bear River," "Sunrise on the Alleghanies,"

"Custar's last Charge," and "The Chariot

Race ;" the latter copied from the great paint-

ing by Alexander Wagner, representing the close

of an exciting race, in the presence of the Empe-
ror Domitian, in the circus, Maximus, at Rome,
with all the wealth and beauty of their day. Mr.
Craig needs no eulogy.

"Wetterhorn" (Peak of Tempests), by Frank
Stark. This is a loftv peak of the Bernese Ober-
land, Switzerland, on the east side of the Grin-

denwald. From the path bv which it is ascend-
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ed, rises one vast precipice of Alpine limestone,

seeming to threaten the traveler ; the height is

about thirteen thousand feet. Also, "Staubach"
(Dust-Stream). This celebrated waterfall is a

mile from the village of Lauterbrunnan, in the

Canton of Berne, Switzerland. It has a descent

of nearly nine hundred feet, and, long before it

reaches the bottom, it is blown into dust of silver

spray; hence the name, from staiib (dust), and
bach (stream).

Water Colors.—Only a few of this class of

pictures were shown at this Exposition, yet
enough to afford a clear idea of their peculiari-

ties. The most casual observer would notice

that there is a sharpness of tone and purity of

color which do not belong to oil paintings.

This does not enhance the one or detract from
the other, but is simply a characteristic. Charm-
ing landscape effects are produced in water col-

ors, as was seen in the pictures executed by
General Granger.
Some of the most impressive street scenes,

church interiors, and character presentations,

have been executed in water colors ; and their

adaptation to marine views may be easily com-
prehended by examining "The Fishermen" and
"Breezy Day" (Swiss scene), scene from Rosa
Bonheur, by A. C. Ross.
Morning Glories, by Miss Mary H. Bucking-

ham.
Flowers, by Miss Julia W. Blandy.
Flowers, by Miss Lucretia Stultz.

Crayons.—Portrait of the late A. G. Brush
and a child, by A. C. Fauley. Portrait of the

?.late WilHam C. Cassell, by T. C. Orndorff.

Horses, by Miss Kate Potwin. "Psyche," also

"Poor Relations," by Miss E. B. Blandy. "Stag
at Bay," by Mrs. H. T. Canfield.

Pottery—A vase. Pilgrim jar (under-glaze),

and specimen of plaque (over-glaze), by Miss
M. H. Buckingham.

Plaque.—"Duchess of Gainsborough" and
"Lady of the Eighteenth Century," the former
"smear-glaze," the latter "over-glaze," but not

fixed, by Miss M. S. Dunlap. Pairs of plates,

cups, and saucers, by Miss M. H. Buckingham.
Pair of Pilgrim vases, and plaque, by Mrs. C.
E. Munson. Pair of plates, by Miss Jennie T.
Ball. Pair of plates, by Miss L. H. Black.

Pair of cups and saucers, by Miss L. Stultz.

Pair of cups and saucers, by Miss C. M. Hub-
bell. Pair of plates, by Miss Mary Linn. Fruit

dish (subject of painting, "The Unexpected
Guest"), Miss Ella G. Ross. Pair of cups and
saucers by Mrs. Dr. Scott.

In June, 1881 , the art work of Miss Dunlap and
her class was even more surprising in variety

and excellence. These exhibitions demonstrate
a high order of talent in the several artists, and
afford ample testimony that home talent is not
only abundant, but can find good opportunity and
efficient leadership in Zanesville.

CHAPTER XXIV.

THE OPERA HOUSE.

Of the Opera, it will be remembered, that

Octavio Rinuecini, of Florence, was the in-

ventor of the production of musical representa-

tions of Comedy and Tragedy, and other dra-

matic pieces ; and that Emelio de Cavelero, dis-

puted this honor with him, A.D., 1590. Among
the Venetians, opera was the chief glory of their

carnival. About the year 1669, the Abbot Per-
rin obtained a grant from Louis XIV. , to set up
an opera at Paris, where, in 1672, was acted

Pomona. This play was probably in keeping
with Ovid's story of Pomona and Vertumnus.
"This Hamadryad lived in the time of Procas,

King of Alba., She was devoted to the culture

of gardens, to which she confined herself, shun-
ning all society with the male deities. Vertum-
nus, among others, was enamored of her, and
under various shapes, tried to win her hand

;

sometimes he came as a reaper, sometimes as a

hay-maker, sometimes as a ploughman, or vine

dresser ; he was a soldier, and a fisherman, but

to equally little purpose. At length, under the

guise of an old woman, he won the confidence of

the goddess, and, by enlarging on the evils of a

single life, and the blessings of the wedded
state, by launching out into the praises of Ver-
tumnus, and relating a tale of the punishment
of female cruelty to a lover, he sought to move
the heart of Pomona ; then, resuming his real

form, he obtained the hand of the no longer re-

luctant nymph. [Ovid, Met. 14, 623, Seq.
Knightley's Mythology, p. 539]." Sir William
Davenant introduced a species of opera in Lon-
don, in 1684. The first regularly performed
opera was at York building, in 1692. The first

in Drurjf Lane, was in 1705. The operas of
Handel, were performed in 1735, and they be-
came general in several of the theatres in a few
years after. The first opera in Zanesville, that

ti'uly deserved the name, was given in this

"Temple of Art," at the opening, Januaiy 20,

1880, by the Emma Abbott English Opera Com-
pan3^ and was a grand affair

;
patronized b}- the

elite of this and neighboring cities. The eclat

of this performance was heralded \)j the press
generally, in the State and out of it. Messrs.
bhultz & Hoge, the proprietors, have conferred a

princely benefice on the community,in furnishing
the Opera House, and the two elegant Halls,
thereb)' rendering the city a great attraction for

operatic and other musical and public perform-
ances, and exhibitions ; adding, also, the block
of elegant store rooms, with spacious rooms
over them for offices. The building has a front-

age of one hundred and twenty-five feet on Fifth

street, extending from the southwest corner of

Fountain alley southward,and a depth of seventy-
five feet. The third story contains the "Conser-
vatory of Music" Hall, which is forty by sixty

feet, and "Gold Hall," which is sixty bj^ eight)'

feet. These halls supply a want. long felt. They
are very handsomely decorated, and adapted
for everj- public purpose, having dressing rooms,

Rick
Highlight

Rick
Highlight



300 HISTORY OF MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO.

COMPANY D^OFFICERS.

E. Hills Talley, Captain.

Benjamin A. Blandy, First Lieutenant ; en-

rolled October 25th, 1861, for three years.

Edward S. Harlan; enrolled October 25th,

1861 , for three years ; appointed Second Lieuten-
ant, December 14th, 1861.

Andrew McDaniel, Captain.

John R. Edgar, First Lieutenant.

Milton Ward, Second Lieutenant.

SERGEANTS.

James C. Harris, Simon P. Joy, William G.
B. McCune, David F. Sullivan, Bishop D. Stall,

James McLaughlin, Amazot Warne, John W.
Butler.

CORPOliALS.

James Sears, James W. Mason, Milton F.

Ward, William H. Sullivan, Enoch Harlan,

James M. Dutro, William J. Frazier, Abel Arter,

David Mitchell, Thomas J. Harlan, Burk Clai-k,

George B. Vandenbark.

PRIVATES.

A. J. Farnum, George F. Darling, Bartley

Beaty, Michael Berry, Henry Crawford, Levi C.
Conn, James Camp, Peter Coss, Albert Demp-
ster, John Edwards, Thomas W. Dutro, James
Finney, John W. Fox, Henry H. Gay, Daniel
Gillespie, Charles J. Gibeaut, Peter Gibeaut,
William F. Huffman, Davis Haines, Thomas J.
Hall, Thomas J. Harlan, Milton Hewett, John
Hamilton, Albert Hunt, Samuel Hoffman,
George W. Hall, Enos T. Hall, Sr., Moses
Howell, John Hufford, Joseph Hubbell, Nathan
Jewett, Daniel Jewett, Harrison W. Joy, Bennia

Joy, Charles S. Kenney, William W. Kenney,
Charles Leach, Samuel Lee, Frank Lowe, John
H. McCune, Francis McGuire, Charles B. Ma-
son, Hugh J. McCallister, Frederick Osborn,
John Q. A. Peyton, William A. Pake, John Pow-
ell, George W. Qiiigley, James F. Quigley,
Wesley Reed, Levi P. Richardson, Nathan
Stotts, Joseph F. Stotts, Geo. B. Smith, George
Squires, Leaven Turner, Amaziah Warner, Ho-
ratio White, John Culver, Oliver B. Crumbaker,
Henry A. Chambers, Robert Cunningham,
Erastus A. Chilcote, Charles W. Clark, Charles
W. Clark, Zenis W. McDowell, Lafayette Davis,
Robert E. Gay, Nicholas Hoosan, George W.
McCurdy, John Newman, Isaac J. NelT, Torence
Peyton, Thomas Parsons, James C. Stewart,
Daniel W. Sthal, Alfred Sigers, Joseph Tolbert,
Hamilton Wallace, Moses Abbott, John Bird,

Lewis Collins, Lemuel G. Dover, William Ech-
elberry, Harrison Echelberry, Allen M. Frazier,
Stephen Gay, William Harlan, Benjamin Har-
lan, William R. Jackson, William McConagha,
Joseph E. Peyton, Oliver Perry, Joshua D. Smith,
Samuel F. Woodburn, John A. Young, Jeremiah
Gardner, David Campbell, James W. Cornelius,

James J. Davis, Llewellyn Echelberry, Samuel
Harper, Daniel Miller, " Richard P. McGill, Jo-
seph Pearce, George Scott, James H. Tom, Na-
thaniel J. White, Israel C.Robinson (enrolled.

November, 1861, for three years
;
promoted from

Captain to Major, January 15th, 1865 ; honorably
discharged, July nth, 1865), Henry Tipple, Jo-,

seph E. Peyton, Jr.

COMPANY F OFFICERS.

Avery L. Waller, Captain.
Cyrus M. Roberts, Captain.
Hugh Dunne, First Lieutenant ; mustered as

private, October 25th, 1861, for three years;
appointed First Lieutenant, December 26th,

1861
;
promoted to Captain, March 13th, 1864,

and transferred to Company K.
Joseph Miller, First Lieutenant.

James T. Story, Second Lieutenant ; enrolled

as private, October 26th, 1861, for three years
;

appointed Second Lieutenant, Decemcer 26th,

1861 ; resigned and mustered out, April ist,

1865.

Martin Durant, Second Lieutenant.

SERGEANTS.

Samuel H. Van Kirk, Alexander V. Hagar,
Robert Hanson, Peter W. Sturtz, Isaiah B.
Case, Edward S. Vernon, William Hadden,
WilUam P. Gault.

CORPORALS.

J. B. Case, Benjamin F. Tudor, F. M.
Story, Henry H. Smith, Thomas Hopes, John
W. Burwell,John H. McCall, Samuel J. Taylor^
Orville O. Barnes, George H. Echelberry.

PRIVATES.

Matthew W. Bay, James T. Baj-, Henry
Birkhimer, John Bucksenschuttz, John Baker,
George Bowman, Lewis Bedell, Albert Bedell,

William Bowden, Percival Boyer, Thomas W.
Cook, John H. Crane, Alexander Culbertson,
William Drummond, Richard Dickeson, Michael
Eschman, William C. Garges, Phillip Gibbons,
Samuel Hurrell, Levi Hammond, Clinton V.
Jenkins, Lenhart Leisure, James Lemmon,
James MuUin, Jesse Moorehead, Joseph Moore-
head, Joseph E. McKinney, John A. Newell,
John Oliver, George W. Runion, Andrew J.
Runion, Joel Runion, Joseph Richardson, John
Snider, Dennison G. Sturtz, David Smith, Albert
Smith, John Stover, James Taylor, John W.
Tanner, Solomon Urban, Joseph Van Kirk,
Nicholas Vernon, William Vernon, John J.
Wine, Wesley West, William C. Waters,
Edward C. Wilson, Joseph F. Wilson, Alfred
Weymour, John C. Wylie, Lewis H. Wall,
John Zimm^-man, Hiram Rogers, William C.
Gargis, George Kearns, Thomas Huffman,
Henry Birkheimer, Adam C. Bowman, Caleb
Baker, James Caldwell, Josiah Clark, Alexander
Culbertson, James Galiher, Lewis Huffman,
Joseph E. McKinney, Thomas A. Palmer,
David W. Shaffer, David W. Sprague, Phillip

Gibbons, Robert Hanson, Benjamin Conway,
Jasper Halsey, Alfred Wvmer, Moses Abbott,
Albert G. Gault, David C. Hager, Chas Hol-
comb', Samuel H. Johns, Abraham Jackson,
Peter B. Lane, Dennis Sturtz, Samuel Sprague,

Rick
Highlight


